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Finch, C. J.
This matter comes before the Count Defendants’ Motion to Dismissdahtiffs’
Complaint. For the reasns expessedbelow, the Caurt will grant Defendans’ motion.

|. Background

Plaintiffs allege the fdlowing fads. During 1993, Plaintiff Peter W. Clark became
acquaintedwith the “Instel’ parel systemof cwngructon. Qark commenceal ngyotiationswith
Edward Hummel Marketng Drector for Ingeel CostructionSystem, Inc., to acqee
distributorship of “Insteel” construction in the U.S Virgin Islands and ther islands in the
Caribbean. For that purpose, Clark and Defendant Darrin Waters organizedrpeoatons,
Island Ingted Systems, hc. and Idand Insteel Construction, Inc. (hereinafter “Plaintiff
corporationy, underPuerto Rio law.

On August 1, 1993, the distibutorship d “Insteel” panels vas avarded to Paintiff
corporations. This distuitorship agreemeifthe “Agreement”) was thereaf renewed for two
consecutive years.Plairiffs allege that the Agreementi@lved them to conduct busiss as an
affiliated deadr of “Insteel’panelsn the U.S. and BritisVirgin Islams. Insteel Sysms was
also gien use of the “steel” name for promotion of its bursess. Riintiffs further dege that at
no time wa Dariin Watersauthaized to usethe “Ingeel” name for his pesonal benefitor the
benefi of any entity other than Plairitdorporations.

Following Hurricane Mrilyn, Island Isteel Constructiongned more than $500,000

! Thereoord indicates hat the Agreemant was ienewed in July 1994, effective until July
1995. However, the ageementfor October 1995 to October 1996 was never fully executed & it
was not signed by drgbutors.
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worth of buildhg contracts in St. Thomas angesthere. Adtionally, Plantiffs were awarded a
contract to recongruct and remockl the Ravilions ard Pools Hotel.

Plaintiffs allege hat Darin Waters canmenced his plarotseize Raintiffs’ asses by
covelttly registering the trade namedland Inseel Systens in the Office oflie Lieuenant
Governor in St. Thomas as a trade name for Darrin Waters under his personal ashtracto
licerse. Thsregstraton took phce m Juy of 194. Watersdid not Ist anyother sockhotlersof
Plaintiff corporationson thetrade name rgistration. However, Waers allegedly misled all the
stockhotlers to beéwe that eackvas isted.

In January 1996, DamriWaters, TamgWaters and Tamy Most formed two new
corporatons, Panels, Inc. and Concrete Panels Construction, Inc., for allegedly the saessbusi
purposes & Plaintiff coporations Clark claims thatthere came aitne when he wento his bank
to check the balansen Platiff corporations’ bank accounts andativered that Waters had
closed the accounts and opened mccounts under the sanaame, removig Clark’sname as
signdory. Phintiffs alege that bter Watersako cbsedtheg acourns aml trasferrel al funds to
the accounts of his newlgrined corpoations.

During 196, tke Pailions aml Poo$ huricare anl danage msuan® chimsetted br
approximatsi $2,000,000. Platiffs clam that the fist check for the Paidins and Pools pregt
was made inlte name of Plaiiff corporations. Hawvever, accading to Plainiffs, all of the
monieswere divided by Ddendants and deposted in the secand bark acoounts of Plaintiff
corporations (uncer Waers’ cantrol) and wee latertransferral to or directly deposited in the

corporate bank acounts of Defendnt caporations. Raintiffs assertthat they nevereceivedany
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funds fomthe RwilionsandPoos progct.

Plainiffs mairtain that Defendds continue to do busirgeasing the lahd Insteel
Systemsitade nane and thaas aresultof Defendants’ misrgresentations to “Insteel,” the
distributorshp agreement wh Plairiff corporations was canceled.

On Novenbe 20, 1997, Rlirtiffs fied thkeir Sunmonsand Comlant inthe Dstrict Court
of Plerto Rco. InSepterber 0f1998,the Perto Rco Cout dignissedhe ase ér lack of
persanal jurisdiction. On @ abou Janwary 28,1999, Plaintiffs filed the insant adion alleging
violations of the LanharAct, 15 U.S.C.81125(a) and violations of related common layhts.

II. Analysis

Jurisdicion over Plaintiffs’ Lanham Actclaims is predicad on B8 U.S.C. 88 1331and
13372 Phintiffs urther asertsuplenenta jurisdction unler B U.SC. §1367with respet to
the common law clais that Plaintf alege arise from the same reus of operative facfs.

A. TheLanham Act claims

Unde 8§ 43@) ofthe lanfam Act, 15 US.C. 811254), tlere ae two dstinct kaseof

liability: “(1) false representation in adverising concening the qualities of gads false advetising

2 Secton 1331 provides “distiict courts with ariginal jurisdiction of all civil actions arising
under the Constitution, lawsr treaties of the United States.” 28 U.S.C. 8 1331. Section 1337
provides digict courts with “origiml jurisdiction of ay cvil action or proceeding aing under
anyAct o Congessreguiating conmeace orproteting trac aml conmeace ganst estaints
and monopodés.” 28 U.S.C. § 1337.

® Under 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a), district courts, in cases wheréndveyorigial
jurisdiction, have the power texercise “suppleamtal jurisdition over all other claismthat are so
related to claims in the actionthin such origial jurigliction that they form part of the same case
or controversyinder Aticle 11l of theUnited States Cotitution.” 28 U.S.C. § 367(a).
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clains); and (2) false representations concerning the origin or endorsement of goods (false

association or product infigemenclains).” Stanfietl v. Osborne Industries,dn52 F.3d 867,

873 (10th Gr. 1995). In the insant cae, Plainiffs allege a claim for false asciafon.*
Spedicaly, Phintiffs alege ttat bytakng and sing br Deendints$ beneft anane denical to
Plaintiff corporations Defendants hae engagd in condict that is likely tocause onfusion,
mistake or deq#ion ago the orign or endorsmen of the goodsi quesbn.

Becaise tle LatnamAct contans o expessstatueof imitations, the [Qourt nust bok
to the state [pterritorial] statute of limtations for analgous types of actionsBeauty Tine,

Inc. v. VU Skin Sg., Inc, 118 F.3d 140, 143 (3d Cir. 1997). “A claim of fraudunder he

Lanram Act conforns to this gnerarule.” Id. Addtionaly, “the rgem3gority of fedeal courts
that have consideared the limitations issue asto Sedion 43(a) claims have teld that these daims
are most comparabto fraud claim, and have apptl the fraudimitations period.”Derrick

Mfg. Corp. v. Southwestern Wired@th. Inc, 934 F. Supp. 796, 804-805 (S.D. Tex. 1996)

* Plantiffs alege volations of thedllowing pertint provigon of the Lantam Ad:

(1) Any person who, on or in canectian with any gads a services, or any
container for goods, usesaommerce anword, term, name, Byool, or dewie,
or any canbination hered, or any false designatn of origin, false o misleading
description ofdct, or false or rsleadng representation o€t which—

(A) is likely to cause onfusion,or to cawse mistakeor to deceive asd the
affiliation, ®nrecton, orasscition ofsut pesonwith ammtherper®n, oras to
the origin, sponsorghior approval of his or her goods, seeg, or commercial
activities by anothe person, .. . shdl be liable in a civil action by any pensavho
belevesthat e or sie s or § Ikely to ke damgedbysudt ad.

15 U.S.C. § 1125(a). Theterm “person” as tsedabove is lroadly defined to include all
indvidual aad corporate derdants amedin the Compahint. Seell U.S.C. § 1127.
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(citing Gordon & Breach Sciee Pubkhers S.A. v.Agrican Ins of Physis 859 F. Supp. 1521,

1528-2 (S.D.N.Y. 1994); Calzaturiicio Ramoni S.p.A. v. U.S. Shoe Cor@68 F. Supp. 1414,

1420 (SD.N.Y. 1994); Vitale v. Marborough Ghery, 1994 WL654494 (S.D.N. 1994);

Mylan Lab., Inc. v. Phamweutical Bsics, Inc, 808 F. Supp446, 453-54 &. 8 (D. Md 1992),

rev’d on other ground¥ F.3d 118 (4th Ci. 1993) cert. denied510 U.S. 11971994);

Johannser. Brown 797 F.Supp.835, 89-40 . Or. 1992);PepsiCo, Inc. v. Duap Tire &

Rubber Corp.578 F. Suppl96, 199 (S.D.N. 1984)). In accordance with the foregoing case
law, ths Court lolds tha the Mrgin Island’ fraudlimitationsperod slould beappied to
Plaintiffs’ 8 43(@) claims. Uner Virgin Islands lawfraud is gowerned by he two-year limitaions

period dbund at 5 V.1.C§ 31(5)(A) Lawaetz v. Bank of Nova Scdia, 653 F. Supp 1278, 1282

(D.V.1.1987). Accordingly, the Caurt will now determine whether Plaintiffs have metthis
statutory period.

In the instant case, the trade name Island Insteel Systesfiled by Defendant Darrin
Waters in July of 1994and theComplaint in his actian was na filed untl approximately five
years laer, on Januay 28, 199. Howeve, beause Raintiffs’ claims are catrolled by the
princples of faud, the issue becest when di Plairiffs discover Defndants’ use of the trade
name?Beauty Time, 118 F.3d at 148holding that . . wken tle urderlying @useof adion
sounds infraud, the sktute of limitations is tolled until the plantiff le arns or ressorably shaild
havelearred throughhe execise of due digerce of theexstence othe chint). Plairiffs argue
that they did not dever the allged violéions untilMarch 18, 1997, welkithin the two-year

statutory period. Specifitg, Plainiffs aver that Plaiiff Peter Cark discovered thelabed
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violations on Mach 18,1997 when he wento the Office of he Lieuenant Gverna of the
Virgin Islands to register a corporation under a naman It was at this tienthat Clark adiges
he frst iewed copie of thebushessiterse andrademek filings ofDefemants.

The evidene befoe the Wurt does notsuppat Plaintiffs’ contention tat they had no
actual knowledge dhe allged viol@ions prior to March 18, 1997. Rather, the evidenc
indicates the contrary. The Court points to the follgvtimo documents which together demce
Plaintiffs’ k nowledge o the pertinent facts suypporting the ingdant causes d action: (1) Darrin
Waters’ correspandence 6 October 25,1996 in whichWaters adnts havig registered the trade
name Isind Insteel Stems under &ilicense; and (2) &htiff Peter Clark’s Aidavit inwhich
Clarkadmis to receiing and reding portionsof Wates’ Octobe 25 ldéter. SeeClark Affid avit
1 26 Waers letter povides inpertner part:

| would like to clear upyour quesions on he new coporations by onceagain explaining

why and how they were formed. . . . To begin, the trade name, Island Insteel Systems.

[sic] Back in Jul of 1994, we registered the tedame under micense ér business

purposes e attachents). Athis pont | had anasory licerse to whth we wee

finishing Magen’s Ridgewith. . . . This license contued tobe in usehroughout 1994 and

the begqining of 1995.

Wates’ Letter to CGArk, chted @tobe 25, 196 (attahel as Khibit C to theDechraton of
Darrin Water9. Thus, in light d Plaintiff Clark’s admission thathe readother portions of the
October 25, 996 letter, he Court finds that Plaints had actual knowledge of Defentamuse
of the Island Isteel Systesinamen October of 1996 when &Kk received theetter. Therefore,
because Plaintffs had actual knowledge o the facts surounding Defendarts’ alleged violations in

October of 1996, and the instant actiors\iled over two years later danuary of 1999,

Plairtiffs’ LanhamAct clams are tim-barred.
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Finally, the Court rejects as lgally unsaund Plaintiffs’ ar gument that their prior timely

filing ofa smmonsandconplaint in the Ditrict Cout of Pueto Rico tols anyappicabk staute

of limitations. The Third Circuit, in Young v. Clantechinc., 863 F.2d G0, 301 (3d. . 1989,
held that“the timely filing of a casan a cout which lacks per®nal jurisdicion overthe ddendant
does not tolthe New drseystatute ofitnitations.” In the nstant cae, the Pu& Rico court
dismssed the atton soély on inpersonanjurisdidion groumls.

In view of the fact hat the stdute of limitations issue is dispmtive, the Cout sees no
need to resolve the lo¢r issues raised lilye parties regarding the Lanham Actroki

B. Plaintiffs Common Law Claims

As prevously stated, Plaiiffs’ commondw clams are predated on supplemeai
jurisdiction under B U.S.C. § 1367@). Thus, beause he Lanham Actlaims are dismissedhe
Court wil not exerci® supptmemal jurisdction over theomnon lawcause®f acton. See28
U.S.C. 8 1367(c) (“district courts may ckcline to exercise supgplemental jurisdiction over a clam
under [§ 1367(a)] if . . . the distticourt has disresed altlams over wtih it has oginal
jurisdiction”). Accordingly, the Court will also stiniss Rlintiffs’ common law @ims.

[11. Conclusion

For the foregoing reasonghe Caurt grants Defendats’ Motion to Dismiss. An

approprate Orderd attached
ENTER:

DATED: August __, 2000

RAYMOND L. FINCH
U.S. DISTRICT JUDGE
ATTEST:
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Orinn E Arnold
Clerkof Court

by:

DeputyClerk
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ORDER
For the reaons expressedin the datached Memarandum Opinion, it is haeby
ORDERED that Defendants’ Motion t®@ismss iISGRANTED.

ENTER:

DATED: August __, 2000

RAYMOND L. FINCH
U.S. DISTRICT JUDGE
ATTEST:
Orinn E Arnold
Clerkof Court
by:

DeputyClerk

cc:  David B. Snith, Esq.
James M. Derr, Esq.
Magstrate Judg&eoffey W Barnard



